1984

William Dean Rogers And Patricia Lee Rogers v. M. O. Bitner Co., a Utah Corporation, Blaine B. Bitner, Westcor, Inc., A Utah Corporation, Douglas Monson, Richard F. Johns, Iii, D. Murphy, F. Alonzo Badger, Utah Security Mortgage, Bonneville Thrift Company, Royal K. Hunt, John S. Davis, And Harold H. Bennett : Brief On Appeal of Defendant-Appellant M.O. Bitner Co.

<p>Bitner Co.'s real estate sales contract was enforceable against Westcor whether or not Westcor lost on its development plans.</p>	

2. THERE WAS NO PROFIT SHARING. 13

Bitner Co. was entitled to its sales price. Its principal could earn money in his individual capacity by making referrals, but these would not inure to Bitner Co.'s benefit.

3. BITNER CO. HAD NO CONTROL OVER THE DEVELOPMENT. 14

All development was the responsibility of Westcor, and Bitner Co. had no management or other duties.

4. BITNER CO. DID NOT CONTROL THE FINANCES. 15

Bitner Co. sold its land and had no influence (let alone control) over any funds Westcor might obtain or expenses it might incur in its development.

5. THE RELEVANT DOCUMENTS DISPROVE ANY JOINT VENTURE BY INTENT. 15

The underlying documents do not set forth the elements of joint venture or set up circumstances to permit a joint venture.

- B. THERE IS NO CONCRETE AVERMENT NOR SUBSTANTIATED FINDING OF FACT WHICH WOULD ALLOW THE TRIAL COURT TO FIND A JOINT VENTURE BETWEEN BITNER CO. AND WESTCOR-MONSON AS TO ROGERS BY THE THEORY OF JOINT VENTURE BY ESTOPPEL TOWARD THIRD PARTIES. 16

By their testimony, Rogers relied only on Westcor as its seller and the developer when Rogers decided to buy lots, build houses and obtain construction loans in hopes of selling the houses and lots at a profit. Rogers never knew Bitner Co. or relied on it when it embarked on its actions. Union Tank Co. v. Wheat Brothers, 15 Ut. 2d 101, 387 P. 2d 1000 (Utah 1964).

- C. THE PLAINTIFFS WERE NOT INTENDED THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES OF THE PURPORTED TRUST AGREEMENT BETWEEN BITNER CO. AND WESTCOR. 23

When Bitner Co. attempted to resolve Westcor's breach to it, it did not in any document recognize any obligation to Roger or create a beneficiary situation for Rogers. See Walker Bank and Trust Co. v. First Security Corp., 9 Ut. 2d 215, 341 P. 2d 944 (1959).

1. THE PURPORTED TRUST AGREEMENT WAS VOID FROM ITS INCEPTION DUE TO FAILURE OF A CONDITION SUBSEQUENT. 23

Since Westcor failed to do anything the condition subsequent essential to the trust agreement was never made, making that agreement a nullity.

2. EVEN IF THE TRUST AGREEMENT IS NOT NULL AND VOID, THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE COULD NOT EXCULPATE WESTCOR AND MONSON FROM THEIR OWN WRONGFUL AND FRAUDULENT ACTS. 25

Even if the trust agreement were not a nullity, hold harmless clauses cannot be enforced to cover fraud. Lamb v. Bangart, 525 P. 2d 602 (Utah 1974).

3. EVEN IF THE TRUST AGREEMENT WERE VALID (WHICH BITNER CO. DOES NOT CONCEDE), THE PLAINTIFFS ARE NOT, AS A MATTER OF LAW, INTENDED THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES OF THAT CONTRACT WHO COULD DIRECTLY ENFORCE THE HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT AGAINST BITNER CO. 27

Even if the trust agreement were valid and were to construed to cover fraudulent conduct, the agreement does not make Rogers an intended beneficiary with an enforceable claim against Bitner Co. Rogers is at most an incidental beneficiary. Schwinghammer v. Alexander, 21 Ut 2d 418, 446 P. 2d 414 (Utah 1968).

4. THE TRUST AGREEMENT AND THE JOINT VENTURE THEORY ARE NOT SUPPORTED BY ANY COLLATERAL ESTOPPEL THEORY. 27

An action to require improvements to be made pursuant to an escrow agreement with Summit County does not show that Bitner Co. could be held liable to Rogers for alleged consequential damages.

- D. IF, AS THE TRIAL COURT FOUND, ROGERS IS A THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY OF THE ESCROW AGREEMENT, ROGERS' RIGHTS OF ENFORCEMENT UNDER THAT AGREEMENT ARE ONLY EQUAL TO THOSE OF SUMMIT COUNTY AND DO NOT EXTEND TO AN ACTION FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. 28

The escrow agreement, like any other agreement, does not confer greater benefits on a third party beneficiary than it does upon the promisee. Rogers thus cannot obtain consequential damages not provided for in the agreement. Moreover, Rogers is not in the category of beneficiaries that could have been contemplated by the escrow agreement since Rogers' improvements were completed at no cost to itself. See, Continental Bank and Trust Company v. R.W. Stewart, 4 Ut.2d 228, 291 P.2d 890 (Utah 1955).

- E. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN CALCULATING DAMAGES TO ROGERS. 32

If, despite all the above, Bitner Co. is held liable to Rogers, Rogers must calculate damages on the basis of his own bargain and cannot promote them.

- II. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN HOLDING BITNER CO. JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY LIABLE WITH DEFENDANTS WESTCOR, MONSON AND BADGER TO BENNETT. 32

Since Bennett had a preexisting loan to Badger and then loaned money to Westcor so Westcor would eventually be able to repay him for both sums, and since Bitner Co. had no part in either transaction, there was no basis for finding Bitner Co. to be a joint venturer as to Bennett's loans. The cases and arguments concerning joint venture set forth in Section 1A are incorporated here as to Bennett's claim.

- A. THERE WAS NO JOINT VENTURE OF INTENT. 32

Relying on the legal arguments made with regard to joint venture on the Rogers claim, Bitner Co. emphasizes that Bennett had even less basis to claim a joint venture than did Rogers.

- B. THERE WAS NO JOINT VENTURE BY ESTOPPEL TOWARD THIRD PARTIES IN REGARD TO BENNETT. 33

Bennett, a sophisticated businessman, took care to know the parties to his transaction and to get their signatures. He never relied on Bitner Co. in making his loans and had no knowledge, experience or reason to rely on Bitner Co.

- C. EVEN IF A FORMAL JOINT VENTURE BASED ON THE DOCUMENTS COULD BE FOUND, THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OR FINDING THAT WESTCOR, MONSON AND BADGER WERE ACTING IN BEHALF OF SUCH AN ALLEGED JOINT VENTURE WHEN THEY OBTAINED A LOAN FROM BENNETT. 34

Even if Bitner Co. was involved in any kind of joint venture with Westcor, that joint venture did not deal with Bennett in obtaining the Bennett loan.

- D. EVEN IF AN ALLEGED JOINT VENTURE INCLUDING BITNER CO. DID EXIST, THE ACTIONS OF WESTCOR, MONSON AND BADGER IN RELATION TO BENNETT WERE, BY STATUTE, NOT ACTIONS OF THAT JOINT VENTURE. 35

Under the Uniform Partnership Law, U.C.A. §48-1-6(3)a, all of the partners must authorize an assignment of partnership assets in trust for creditors. Bennett received such an assignment from Westcor, Monson and Badger: to comply with the law, Bennett must admit that he had dealt with all partners and that Bitner Co. was not one of them.

- E. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FINDING BENNETT TO BE A DIRECT THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY UNDER THE TRUST AGREEMENT AMONG BITNER CO., WESTCOR AND MONSON.

36

Bennett was even more remote from the trust agreement than was Rogers; his loans could not be encompassed in the agreement in order to make him into an intended beneficiary. Schwinghammer v. Alexander, supra and the arguments in Section IC3 above.

- F. EVEN IF BENNETT WERE AN INTENDED THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT (WHICH HE IS NOT), HE COULD NOT ENFORCE THE AGREEMENT BECAUSE THE AGREEMENT IS SPECIFICALLY UNENFORCEABLE BY WESTCOR OR MONSON AS TO THEIR OBLIGATION TO BENNETT.

38

As with the Rogers, when a party has committed fraud (as did Westcor), it cannot by contract place liability for its fraud upon anyone else. Bennett's remedy for the fraud of Westcor, Monson and Badger is against them directly, not by way of a contract clause whose enforcement would violate public policy. Lamb v. Bangart, supra.

- G. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DECLARING BITNER CO. JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY LIABLE FOR PUNITIVE DAMAGES IN THE AMOUNT OF \$10,000.00 TO BENNETT, EVEN IF JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY IS UPHELD AS TO THE REST OF BENNETT'S CLAIM.

39

Even if Bitner Co. could somehow be held liable to Bennett despite the foregoing, Bitner Co., which did not directly commit fraud, should not be liable for punitive damages arising from the direct and specific fraud of Westcor, Monson and Badger. Likewise, an award of an attorney's fee against Bitner Co. is inappropriate.

III. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING THE MOTIONS FOR A MISTRIAL MADE BY DEFENDANTS' COUNSEL JOHN S. DAVIS WHEN IT BECAME CLEAR THAT HE, AS COUNSEL, COULD NOT ADEQUATELY REPRESENT BITNER CO. AND WESTCOR AND MONSON BECAUSE OF SERIOUS AND COMPELLING CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

40

Bitner Co.'s former counsel John S. Davis undertook representation of parties whose interests were in direct and obvious conflict so that he was unable to represent each adequately. Although recognizing the severe problem, the trial court refused to remedy the problem on Davis' repeated motions for mistrial or a new trial. As an alternative, the Court should grant Bitner Co. a new trial on any issues not resolved in its favor on this appeal. U.R. Civ. P. Rule 61, Disciplinary Rules 5-102, 5-105.

CONCLUSION

44

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

	<u>Page</u>
<u>Case Law</u>	
<u>Boyd v. Baker</u> , 530 P.2d 1, 2 (Utah 1974)	12, 13, 33
<u>Briggs v. Hall Auto and Equipment Sales, Inc.</u> , 441 P.2d 644, 648 (Utah 1968)	12
<u>Calk v. American Standard, Inc.</u> , 583 P.2d 618 (Utah 1978)	23
<u>Continental Bank and Trust Company v. F.W. Stewart</u> , 4 Ut. 2d 228, 291 P.2d 890 (Utah 1955)	28, 37
<u>Edwards v. Bardart</u> , 525 P.2d 602, 606 (Utah 1974)	26, 38
<u>Johnson v. Westcott, et al.</u> , 3rd District Court, Unreported, Civil No. 5445, 1978	20, 27, 29
<u>Kochhammer v. Alexander</u> , 21 Ut. 2d 414, 348 P.2d 414, 416 (Utah 1960)	27, 37
<u>Rockwell Co. v. Wheat Brothers</u> , 15 Ut.2d 101, 387 P.2d 100, 113-14 (Utah 1964)	17
<u>Wells Bank and Trust Co. v. First Security Corp.</u> , 401 P.2d 215, 341 P.2d 444 (Utah 1959)	23
<u>Other Authorities</u>	
Ut. Am. Bar. 2d 34	16
Utah Code of Ethics, Canon 5, Disciplinary Rules 5-102	42
Utah Code of Ethics, Canon 5, Disciplinary Rule 5-105	43
Uniform Partnership Act of Utah, U.C.A. 448-1-6(3)a	35
Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 61	44
Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 63	42

BRIEF ON APPEAL OF DEFENDANT-APPELLANT M.O. BITNER CO.

NATURE OF THE CASE

Defendant-appellant appeals from an order and judgment after trial in the Third Judicial District Court for Summit County (per Wilkinson, J.) which awarded damages and other relief to plaintiffs and to cross-claimant on the theory that defendant-appellant was a joint venturer with certain other defendants.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The trial court found three defendants, including the defendant-appellant, jointly and severally liable to the plaintiffs for damages, costs and attorney's fees on the grounds, first, that the failure of certain of the defendants to provide improvements to lots purchased by the plaintiffs had harmed the plaintiffs and, second, that the defendants against which the judgment was so rendered were engaged in a joint venture. In the alternative, the court found, third, that the plaintiffs were third party beneficiaries of certain agreements between the defendant-appellant and the other defendants against whom liability was found directly.