Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –)

1984

William Dean Rogers And Patricia Lee Rogers v. M. O. Bitner Co., a Utah Corporation, Blaine B. Bitner, Westcor, Inc., A Utah Corporation, Douglas Monson, Richard F. Johns, Iii, D. Murphy, F. Alonzo Badger, Utah Security Mortgage, Bonneville Thrift Company, Royal K. Hunt, John S. Davis, And Harold H. Bennett: Brief of Respondent Bennett

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

Bennett. The relationship of Alonzo Badger to Monson was that of a sub-partnership. The concept of a sub-partnership is described as follows:

A sub-partnership is a so-called partnership formed between a member of a partnership and a third person for a division of the profits coming to him from the partnership enterprise, by an agreement of such character as to disclose the essentials necessary to a partnership between the partner and the third person. How profits between the members of a subpartnership are to be divided is immaterial, and the mere fact that the one who is not a partner of the original partnership is to receive the entire profits of the business will not prevent the formation of a sub-partnership. The sub-partners are partners inter se, but a sub-partner does not become a member of the partnership since there is no agreement between him and the other partners, even though the sub-partnership agreement is known to the other members of the firm. 59 Am. Jur. 2d, Partnership, §16, p. 941.

The testimony of both Monson and Badger show unequivocably that their relationship was that of a sub-partnership. Alonzo Badger represented himself at trial and as such cross-examined Douglas Monson. The following dialogue occurred:

- Q. (By Mr. Badger) Do you recall the discussion in trying to put this venture together where a proposal was made that we enter into a partnership and that I take a percentage of your share from the project?
- A. Yes.
- Q. Do you recall what that percentage was?
- A. No. I don't.
- Q. Was there ever any agreement signed or prepared?
- A. No. You were always going to formalize something, but you never did.
- Q. And did you ever make any attempt to formalize or
- A. No.
- Q. Sign any agreement. Do you think that could have been the reason that I entered into an agreement and pledged \$284,000 in assets?
- A. I'm sure it was.

- Q. And that agreement was never executed, is that correct?
- A. To my knowledge, No.

(Tr. 399-400).

Likewise, in a dialogue between Mr. Badger and Mr. Lawis (attorney for both Westcor and M. O. Bitner Co.) the following statements were made:

- Q. (By Mr. Davis) All right. Was it your understanding under the document (the Summit County Escrow Agreement) that you did tell Mr. Murphy to sign that you had an obligation of some sort relating to Park Ridge Estates?
- A. Absolutely.
- Q. In the amount of \$284,000?
- A. Absolutely. Absolutely.
- Q. Was that obligation to in some way pay for the improvements that go into Park Ridge Estates?
- A. No. It was to act as a guarantee that if the improvements weren't in that funds could be drawn against by the county to pay for the improvements.
- Q. What was your reason for taking on that obligation?
- A. Doug Monson and I had a partnership, verbal partnership agreement, that was never executed that I would participate in his share of the partnership proceeds . . . (Tr. 701-702).

* * *

- Q. (By Mr. Davis) Now, when you entered into this partnership agreement with Mr. Davis, which results in you taking on an obligation of \$284,000, what he you get in return?
- A. I received probably \$15,000 or \$20,000 in the strik of 1980. . . .

* * *

Q. In the spring of when? 1980?

- A. 1981. I think.
- What were you supposed to receive?
- A. One-half of these proceeds, or share. One-half of the net.
- Was there any documentation which showed what that one-half might be?
- A. No.
- 2. Did you have some basis for delivering (sic) what the one-half might be?
- A. Yes.
- O. What was that basis?
- A. Just reviewing the subdivision and the potential sales and potential, the estimated development costs and the amount of the bond.
- Q. Had you seen the document whereby Westcor purchased the land.
- A. No.
- Q. From M. O. Bitner Co.?
- A. No, not at that --
- Q. What did you estimate Westcor's interest to be before you were to get your 50%? What was the full amount that Westcor was to receive in your estimation?
- A. I had in mind some half million dollars gross.
- Q. And you were to get half of that?
- A. No. Half of the net.
- Q. Did you understand that Westcor had the obligation of putting in--
- A. Yes.
- Q. \$284,000?
- A. Yes.
- Q. Westcor then was to receive a half million, and if they put in \$284,400 then they were to have roughly \$250,000?

- A. That is approximately.
- O. Then you were to get half of that?
- A. Yes. One half.
- Q. Did you understand that you may have to put out the full \$284.000?
- A. Yes.
- O. Was that calculated in this?
- A. That was in the gross.
- Q. Did you figure then that you would pay this and then you would get half of this?
- A. Yes, but I may have to pay the \$284,000, yes.
- Q. Okay. Did you receive any contracts to cover the \$284,000?
- A. Yes.
- Q. And what was the total face value of those contracts:
- A. Well, I think the records I put up yesterday was probably the best estimate. But in addition to that there was, there was a couple of other contracts It would have been about \$250,000, I would recollect-(Tr. 702, 711-713).

Thus, the testimony is clear that the partnership in this case was between Westcor and M. O. Bitner Co. with a side subpartnership between Westcor and Badger. The liability of M. Bitner Co. is thus predicated on the actions of Monson and Westcor in incurring the debt for the benefit of the venture.

Westcor, M. O. Bitner Co. and Badger it remains to examine whether Bennett's lack of knowledge of the M. O. Bitner Co. relationship is fatal to a claim against this company. Appel. alleges "Bennett neither saw nor could allege that he thought

there was privity or any relationship with or between Bitner Co. and his loan." (Appellants' Brief, p. 33). Again, this statement is not disputed by respondent Bennett since knowledge of Bennett as to Bitner Co.'s partnership is immaterial to Bitner's liability. 68 C.J.S. Partnership, §161(c), pp. 606-607.

In <u>Gardenhire v. Ray</u>, 23 N.E.2d 927 (Ill. 1939) the court held that where a partnership relation existed between a defendant and a co-defendant for the development of an oil well the defendant was liable on a contract executed by the co-defendant with plaintiff for drilling of the well whether or not the plaintiff knew of the defendant's connection with the well.

Likewise, in <u>Raymond S. Roberts, Inc. v. White</u>, 97 A.2d 245 (Vt. 1953) the Supreme Court of Vermont held that where one partner purchases property upon his individual credit for the partnership but the seller is not aware of the existence of the partnership the seller may, when he discovers it, have benefit of the partnership liability.

Finally, as noted in a leading treatise, the liability of an undisclosed joint venture is no different than that of an undisclosed partner.

As in the case of partnerships, the undisclosed joint venturer is liable for acts performed by his associates providing they are acting within the scope of their authority. This is consistent with the general rules of agency. §186 of the Restatement of the Law of Agency provides:

An undisclosed principal is bound by contracts and conveyances made on his account by an agent acting within his authority It is elementary that the fact that a third person has theretofore

dealt with the agent as principal does not affect the liability of the principal upon discovery. Even after discovery of the identity of the principal, the fact that such a third person looks only to the agent for payment or performance does not affect the principal's liability. C.C.H., Business Organizations, §41.10 [2, p. 1166-67].

As noted earlier, it is also immaterial whether or not Bitner Co. was aware that Monson had entered into a loan agreement with Bennett in order to obtain financing for the development. All partners are jointly and severally liable for the acts of a partner concerning partnership business.

Stauffer v. Ti Hang Lung & Co., 84 P.2d 209 (Cal. App. 1938);

see §48-1-6, U.C.A. (1). For these reasons, therefore, the arguments raised by Appellant in its "Estoppel" section are without merit and must be rejected.

C. The Debt Owing to Bennett Was For the Benefit of the Park Ridge Estates

Development and Therefore M. O. Bitner Co. is Liable.

Next, Appellant argues that even if a joint venture exists between Bitner Co. and Westcor/Monson that the Bennett obligation was made solely to another partnership consisting of Westcor/Monson and Badger and therefore Bitner is not liable. (Appellant's Brief, pp. 34-35).

As discussed in the previous section, however, this characterization is incorrect. The evidence is undisputed that Badden and Monson only entered into an arrangement for the sole pured of sharing the profits from the Park Ridge Estate venture. The unlike the examples cited in Appellants' Brief, this is not also

instance where a person is a member of two separate and distinct partnerships each having a separate and independent purpose.

Alonzo Badger testified that he had been informed by

Monson that the subdivision investment was faltering because

Monson was unable to meet the improvement obligations and had

been served with notices of default by various persons. (Tr.

661). It was Badger's idea that the needed financing could

be obtained from Bennett provided that real estate contracts

could be given to Bennett so that he would feel secure in making

any loans. Monson verified this testimony and again stated

that the money was needed in order to pay bills on the Park

Ridge project. (Tr. 370).

Monson/Westcor was obviously desperate for money in order to keep the venture alive. Monson was therefore willing to agree with Bennett that if Bennett would lend the necessary cash, Westcor would secure the debt obligation with over \$200,000 of contract receivables, would pay Bennett the full amount borrowed plus a previous amount owed to Badger, and would pay the total obligation within three months after the loan had been made by Bennett.

Appellants' attempt to create two separate partnership entities is fruitless based upon the record. The lower court concluded correctly that money given to Monson/Westcor for the purpose of developmental expenses was for the benefit of the joint venture with Bitner Co. and therefore Bitner Co. was liable for this obligation. It is immaterial that the money advanced

by indepth went to while the interesting hall satisfic to the contract which is elementary and the contract and contract the contract the contract and contract and contract the contract and contrac

This the freceins crinciples, therefore, the delenative incurred by thosen Westcor is directly imputable to Fitner in and a judgment against it is proper.

Partnership Act Has Been Waived by Appelland and, Even if Such Waiver did not Occur, the Partnership Act was not Violated.

As rellant contends that if a joint venture between Pitter To. and Western did in fact exist then the failure of Bither To a weightedly authorize the assignment of the partner. The process of Senectt voided any such transactions. Appellications of a portion of the failure Partnership Act. (Appellants' Brief, pp. 35-36). It was of Appellant's argument is that the transaction among western, Badder and Senectt was illegal since Bither Co. It intherize the assignment of the real estate contracts to be as a greater.

The argument has advanced by Appellant is improper in it was not raise; in the lower court. Rule 8(c) of the it males of divil broadure clearly require that the defense illevality be set forth affirmatively. This doubt has eccasions state; that the failure to properly plead and in-

Attirmative defense constitutes waiver of that defense.

Pratt v. Board of Education of Vintah County School District,
569 P.2d 294 (Utah 1977); Bezner v. Schotinental Dry Sleaners,
Inc., 548 P.2d 898 (Utah 1973).

A review of the Answer filed by M. O. Bitner Co. to the Crossclaim of Harold Bennett shows that no such defense was ever raised. (R. 679-682). Other affirmative defenses such as waiver and contributory negligence were plead, however.

At no time in the trial did Bitner Co. claim that Monson had exceeded his partnerhsip authority by assigning the contracts to Bennett. In fact, quite to the contrary, Bitner Co. has argued throughout this litigation that it has never been a partner with Monson/Westcor and therefore is not liable for any acts of Monson.

The failure to raise this defense in the lower court precludes Bitner's attempt to now do so in this Court. It is fundamental that defenses and claims not raised by the parties in the trial court cannot be considered for the first time on appeal. Bangerter v. Poulton, 663 P.2d 100 (Utah 1983); Heath v. Mower, 597 P.2d 855 (Utah 1979).

Even assuming <u>arguendo</u>, however, that this defense has not been waived, there is sufficient evidence to conclude that the Uniform Partnership Act was followed. The California Supreme Court in one of the few cases dealing with that section of the Uniform Partnership Act codified as 48-1-6, U.C.A. held that there is no requirement that assent to assignment of partnership property for the benefit of a creditor be reduced

same period of time, while preparing the defenses in the Lync lawsuit, Monson prepared a record of the assigned lots, including those assigned to Bennett and showed them to Davis. (Tr. 350, 423). Blaine Bitner stated that during this same period of time he began to suspect that something was serious, wrong when people started suing him. (Tr. 224). He further stated that he did not feel he could trust Monson by the time the agreement in June of 1980 was made. (Tr. 539).

In June of 1980 the "Trust Agreement" was executed by Westcor and Bitner acting through Douglas Monson and Blaine Bitner respectively. Shortly thereafter on July 22 at the Jim Lynn hearing, Mr. Davis, again representing M. O. Bitner Co., made a statement to the court that he foresaw a dissipation to those parties who had not yet recorded their contracts and that he felt it necessary to give some kind of recording on the public record to give notice in order to mitigate the damages and protect the assets. Davis testified that he was referring to the Trust Agreement when he made this statement. (Tr. 816-817).

Davis further admitted that on five different occasions during the Lynn proceedings he told the court of his concern at the time of entering into the Trust Agreement in that Badger or whomever held the contracts had assigned them to unknown people. (Tr. 828).

Whether the contracting party to an agreement intended to make a person or class of persons a beneficiary is a quest-of fact which must be decided by the trier of fact. Clark **:

American Standard, Inc., 583 P.2d 618 (Utah 1978). Based upon the evidence before the court there was every reason for the court to conclude that Bennett fell within the category of those persons the hold harmless agreement was designed to encompass. Obviously, Bitner Co. through its president or its attorney had sufficient knowledge that wrongdoing was prevalent as to the real estate contracts held by both Badger and Monson. It was reasonable for the court to conclude that Bennett, both as a contract holder and as a creditor of the subdivision improvements, could be asserting claims against Monson/Westcor in the future and that therefore Bitner Co. was assuming such obligations.

Since Bitner Co. negligently placed itself in the position of allowing Monson and Badger to cause the chaos and fraud which resulted in 1979 and 1980 it is only equitable that Bitner Co. be held to an agreement which it entered solely for the purpose of eliminating the Monson/Westcor liability and allowing it the opportunity to salvage the project and protect it interest. (Tr. 208).

F. The Lower Court Correctly Found Bitner Co. Jointly Liable for any Fraudulent Conduct Committed by Monson/Westcor.

Appellant contends that because the lower court found that Monson/Westcor and Badger had specifically committed fraud against Bennett whereas Bitner Co. neither participated in nor was aware of the fraud committed against Bennett, that it is therefore improper to assess joint liability against Bitner Co.

for the fraud of others. (Appellants' Brief, pp. 38-39). The argument further continues that this joint liability was necessarily based upon the hold harmless clause of the Trust Agreement and such clause is therefore invalid as a matter of public policy. (Id.)

There are two reasons why this argument is invalid. The the question as to the validity of the hold harmless agreement in a fraudulent context is academic since under the laws of partnership Bitner Co. is liable for Westcor's fraud regardles of any contractual agreement between the partners. Second, to authority relied upon by Appellant is distinguishable and does not apply to this situation.

The Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law entered by the lower court recognize that a debt on behalf of the partnershi was incurred to Bennett. The fraud of Monson and Badger, as a by Appellant himself (Appellants' Brief, p. 38) in no way affect the debt but only the security which was given for the debt. Other words, the contracts which were assigned to Bennett weight dissipated by the fraudulent actions of Monson and Badger. The elimination of the security, however, does not eliminate the underlying debt which still exists to the partnership.

It is fundamental partnership law that a partnership is bound by a partner's wrongful acts. Section 48-1-10, U.C.A states the following:

Where by any wrongful act or omission of any partner acting in the ordinary course of the business of the partnership or with the authority of his co-partners loss or injury is caused to any person, not being a partner in the partnership, or any penalty is incurred, the partnership is

liable therefor to the same extent as the partner so acting or omitting to act.

In addition, Section 48-1-11 provides:

The partnership is bound to make good the loss: (1) where one partner acting within the scope of his apparent authority receives money or property of a third person and misapplies it; and, (2) where the partnership in the course of its business receives money or property of a third person and the money or property so received is misapplied by any partner while it is in the custody of the partnership.

Finally, Section 48-1-12 provides:

All partners are liable: (1) jointly and severally for everything chargeable to the partner-ship under Sections 48-1-10 and 48-1-11; (2) jointly for all other debts and obligations of the partner-ship; but any partner may enter into a separate obligation to perform a partnership contract.

This statutory concept emanates from the Uniform Partnership

Act. Courts applying this same act have stated the following:

There is no merit in the contentions that fraudulent concealment by one partner may not be imputed to another partner. "The individual partners . . . are liable in a civil action for the fraudulent misconduct of a partner within the course or scope of the transactions and business of the partnership, whether such misconduct be by fraudulent representations or otherwise, even though the co-partners had no knowledge of the fraud and did not participate therein . ." 68 C.J.S. Partnership §170, p. 620; Kearns v. Sparks, 260 S.W2d 353, 360 (Mo. App. 1953). Martin v. Barbour, 558 S.W.2d 200, 209 (Mo. App. 1977).

See also, A. Sam & Sons Produce Co. v. Campese, 217 N.Y.S.2d 275 (N.Y. App. 1961).

Thus, under Utah law and general partnership law concepts
Bitner Co. is jointly liable for any fraud committed by Monson/
Westcor independent of the Trust Agreement which was entered into
in June of 1980. Appellant's trial counsel acknowledged to
the lower court that a finding of fraud as to Westcor would be

imputed to Bitner Co. (Tr. 976). It is therefore unnecessary to utilize the Trust Agreement in order to sustain the lower court's finding of joint liability for the Bennett oblication

Even so, the June 1980 Trust Agreement would still form a basis for Bennett's enforcement of any obligation based upon fraud. The Trust Agreement provided that Bitner Co. agrees to hold Westcor and Monson harmless of any liability arisin: out of the development of the Park Ridge Estates subdivision. Since the evidence showed that Bitner did not trust Monson at the time the agreement was made (Tr. 539) and in fact believe: that Westcor had cheated Bitner Co. as to the original Novembe. 1978 agreement (Tr. 225) it is not reasonable to assume that Bitner Co. was aware that fraud could have been committed by we but nevertheless agreed to make good on such fraud even though it was already obligated to do so under the partnership act.

On the other hand, as between Monson/Westcor and Bitner The the argument now raised by Appellant could certainly be made that any agreement by Bitner Co. to assume the full responsibility of the partnership debts is invalid since some of these debts were fraudulently induced. The <u>Lamb</u> case cited by Appellant would then be applicable because to allow the enforcement of the chard as between Westcor and Bitner Co. would immunize Westcor from the own fraud. Since this question, however, does not concern Both and since no crossclaim has ever been filed by either Westcor: Bitner Co. against each other the answer to these questions as irrelevant to this appeal.

The lower court correctly found that Bitner Co. was joint.

liable upon the debt to Bennett under traditional partnership law regardless of whether the debt was induced by fraudulent means and whether the security for such debt had been fraudulently misued by Monson. The obligation on the debt must still be paid by Westcor's partner Bitner Co.

G. The Lower Court was Correct in Declaring
Bitner Co. Severally Liable for Punitive
Damages and Attorneys' Fees.

Finally, Appellant argues that it is improper for Bitner Co. to be held liable for punitive damages and for attorneys' fees when it did no wrong itself and is in effect punishing an innocent party. Likewise, Bitner Co., according to Appellant, should not be assessed attorneys' fees since it was not involved in the fraud committed by Monson and Badger. (Appellants' Brief, pp. 39-40).

For the same reasons stated in the previous section this argument is without merit. A partnership under §48-1-10, U.C.A. is liable for any penalties assessed against a partner "to the same extent as the partner so committing or omitting to act." Section 48-1-12 provides that all partners are jointly and severally liable for everything chargeable to the partnership under §48-1-10 and 48-1-11.

Bitner Co. has misstated the concept of partnership.

Essentially the law views Bitner Co. and Westcor as one individual and it is immaterial whether Bitner Co. was innocent of any wrongdoing if it was a partner of Westcor and if Westcor itself committed a wrongful act. Partnerships have been held liable for assaults by partners (30 A.L.R.2d 859) and for the embezzle-

and the profession of the prof

The following statement was a set.

The following statement was a set of the same statement of the statement

But I have also make it clear to the Court that I did not necessarily relieve that sitner's position and Westcer's position were abortical in all respects. But as related to particular issues they were the sare as redards, you know, between carticular parties on marticular issues, and therefore I represented both parties because there was nesconflict of interest in that resard. And I believe that my position has been consistent. Even at the becomining of this trial, I felt that the issues at hand here were not such that would create a conflict so I think that when you consider that, you need to take this so be file into consideration. (Tr. 11.4)

It is obvious from this statement that even to the end of the trial Davis did not recognize any conflict of interest existed between the two clients and, as noted by the plaintiffs, flatly denied that any conflict was present and only took exception to the innuendos that such conflict may exist.

There was clearly methins earth shattering which occurred during the trial which would give rise to any claim of similar in the eart of any of the carties of Mr. Lavis. All of the cast was were well trial prior to trial and it was apparent from even a cursory reading of the leadings and the justions asked caring the decisions that it is claimful and bennett would be claimed a coint meet as appearent, etween Westcor and latter 1. Its wise, it was apparent that they were both soing

to rely upon the TRust Agreement as one means of obtaining liability against both entities.

The Canons of Ethics as quoted by Appellant are simply that. They are a guideline to attorneys as to what conduct they may and may not ethically perform. It was Davis' oblicate many years prior to the actual trial of this case to disassociate himself with one or the other client if he believed a conflictive even possibly could have existed. He did not do so, nor did any of the respective clients request him to do so.

It is extremely unlikely that had Bitner Co. prevailed in this trial and had an appeal been prosecuted by these responders that any claim would then be made that a new trial was required because of a conflict of interest by Bitner's attorney. It was Bitner Co.'s decision to retain Davis throughout this litigation and it is therefore Bitner Co.'s problem or Davis' problem but certainly is not the problem of either Plaintiffs or respondent Bennett. Since, as noted by the plaintiffs, the lower court was never asked to declare a mistrial because of this conflict, it would be a misstatement to say that the lower court corrected denied such mistrial. Perhaps more correctly it could be stated that had Appellants properly raised the issue during trial there the lower court should certainly have denied it and any issue on appeal should be resolved in favor of these respondents.

CONCLUSION

Entering into a joint venture or a partnership is a serious decision. While there are unquestionably numerous

advantages that can be derived from such a relationship there are also liabilities and disadvantages. In this case Bitner Co. failed to exercise reasonable care in selecting a company to co-develop the Park City subdivision. Bitner Co. failed to check on the background, the assets, or the reliability of Westcor or Douglas Monson. Bitner Co. assumed that since it still retained title to the land that it had little to lose by joining with an unknown entity. This assumption was obviously incorrect.

Because of Bitner Co.'s carelessness in placing Monson and Westcor in a position to deal with third parties, Bitner Co. is jointly and severally liable for the acts and omissions of its joint venturer. This liability arises not only from traditional laws of partnership but also from Bitner Co.'s decision to hold Westcor harmless for any acts concerning its involvement with the subdivision.

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